

## § 35.4002

(2) Title II of the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974, as amended; or

(3) A regulation or order issued under those Acts.

(b) The Commission may obtain a court order for the payment of a civil penalty imposed under Section 234 of the Atomic Energy Act:

(1) For violations of—

(i) Sections 53, 57, 62, 63, 81, 82, 101, 103, 104, 107, or 109 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended;

(ii) Section 206 of the Energy Reorganization Act;

(iii) Any rule, regulation, or order issued under the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section;

(iv) Any term, condition, or limitation of any license issued under the sections specified in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this section.

(2) For any violation for which a license may be revoked under Section 186 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.

### § 35.4002 Criminal penalties.

(a) Section 223 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, provides for criminal sanctions for willful violation of, attempted violation of, or conspiracy to violate, any regulation issued under sections 161b, 161i, or 161o of the Act. For purposes of Section 223, all the regulations in 10 CFR part 35 are issued under one or more of sections 161b, 161i, or 161o, except for the sections listed in paragraph (b) of this section.

(b) The regulations in 10 CFR part 35 that are not issued under subsections 161b, 161i, or 161o for the purposes of Section 223 are as follows: §§ 35.1, 35.2, 35.7, 35.8, 35.12, 35.15, 35.18, 35.19, 35.65, 35.100, 35.200, 35.300, 35.4001, and 35.4002.

## PART 36—LICENSES AND RADIATION SAFETY REQUIREMENTS FOR IRRADIATORS

### Subpart A—General Provisions

Sec.

- 36.1 Purpose and scope.
- 36.2 Definitions.
- 36.5 Interpretations.
- 36.8 Information collection requirements: OMB approval.

## 10 CFR Ch. I (1–1–06 Edition)

### Subpart B—Specific Licensing Requirements

- 36.11 Application for a specific license.
- 36.13 Specific licenses for irradiators.
- 36.15 Start of construction.
- 36.17 Applications for exemptions.
- 36.19 Request for written statements.

### Subpart C—Design and Performance Requirements for Irradiators

- 36.21 Performance criteria for sealed sources.
- 36.23 Access control.
- 36.25 Shielding.
- 36.27 Fire protection.
- 36.29 Radiation monitors.
- 36.31 Control of source movement.
- 36.33 Irradiator pools.
- 36.35 Source rack protection.
- 36.37 Power failures.
- 36.39 Design requirements.
- 36.41 Construction monitoring and acceptance testing.

### Subpart D—Operation of Irradiators

- 36.51 Training.
- 36.53 Operating and emergency procedures.
- 36.55 Personnel monitoring.
- 36.57 Radiation surveys.
- 36.59 Detection of leaking sources.
- 36.61 Inspection and maintenance.
- 36.63 Pool water purity.
- 36.65 Attendance during operation.
- 36.67 Entering and leaving the radiation room.
- 36.69 Irradiation of explosive or flammable materials.

### Subpart E—Records

- 36.81 Records and retention periods.
- 36.83 Reports.

### Subpart F—Enforcement

- 36.91 Violations.
- 36.93 Criminal penalties.

AUTHORITY: Secs. 81, 82, 161, 182, 183, 186, 68 Stat. 935, 948, 953, 954, 955, as amended, sec. 234, 83 Stat. 444, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2111, 2112, 2201, 2232, 2233, 2236, 2282); secs. 201, as amended, 202, 206, 88 Stat. 1242, as amended, 1244, 1246 (42 U.S.C. 5841, 5842, 5846).

SOURCE: 58 FR 7728, Feb. 9, 1993, unless otherwise noted.

### Subpart A—General Provisions

#### § 36.1 Purpose and scope.

(a) This part contains requirements for the issuance of a license authorizing the use of sealed sources containing radioactive materials in

irradiators used to irradiate objects or materials using gamma radiation. This part also contains radiation safety requirements for operating irradiators. The requirements of this part are in addition to other requirements of this chapter. In particular, the provisions of parts 19, 20, 21, 30, 71, 170, and 171 of this chapter apply to applications and licenses subject to this part. Nothing in this part relieves the licensee from complying with other applicable Federal, State and local regulations governing the siting, zoning, land use, and building code requirements for industrial facilities.

(b) The regulations in this part apply to panoramic irradiators that have either dry or wet storage of the radioactive sealed sources and to underwater irradiators in which both the source and the product being irradiated are under water. Irradiators whose dose rates exceed 5 grays (500 rads) per hour at 1 meter from the radioactive sealed sources in air or in water, as applicable for the irradiator type, are covered by this part.

(c) The regulations in this part do not apply to self-contained dry-source-storage irradiators (those in which both the source and the area subject to irradiation are contained within a device and are not accessible by personnel), medical radiology or teletherapy, radiography (the irradiation of materials for nondestructive testing purposes), gauging, or open-field (agricultural) irradiations.

### § 36.2 Definitions.

*Annually* means either (1) at intervals not to exceed 1 year or (2) once per year, at about the same time each year (plus or minus 1 month).

*Doubly encapsulated sealed source* means a sealed source in which the radioactive material is sealed within a capsule and that capsule is sealed within another capsule.

*Irradiator* means a facility that uses radioactive sealed sources for the irradiation of objects or materials and in which radiation dose rates exceeding 5 grays (500 rads) per hour exist at 1 meter from the sealed radioactive sources in air or water, as applicable for the irradiator type, but does not include irradiators in which both the

sealed source and the area subject to irradiation are contained within a device and are not accessible to personnel.

*Irradiator operator* means an individual who has successfully completed the training and testing described in § 36.51 and is authorized by the terms of the license to operate the irradiator without a supervisor present.

*Panoramic dry-source-storage irradiator* means an irradiator in which the irradiations occur in air in areas potentially accessible to personnel and in which the sources are stored in shields made of solid materials. The term includes beam-type dry-source-storage irradiators in which only a narrow beam of radiation is produced for performing irradiations.

*Panoramic irradiator* means an irradiator in which the irradiations are done in air in areas potentially accessible to personnel. The term includes beam-type irradiators.

*Panoramic wet-source-storage irradiator* means an irradiator in which the irradiations occur in air in areas potentially accessible to personnel and in which the sources are stored under water in a storage pool.

*Pool irradiator* means any irradiator at which the sources are stored or used in a pool of water including panoramic wet-source-storage irradiators and underwater irradiators.

*Product conveyor system* means a system for moving the product to be irradiated to, from, and within the area where irradiation takes place.

*Radiation room* means a shielded room in which irradiations take place. Underwater irradiators do not have radiation rooms.

*Radiation safety officer* means an individual with responsibility for the overall radiation safety program at the facility.

*Sealed source* means any byproduct material that is used as a source of radiation and is encased in a capsule designed to prevent leakage or escape of the byproduct material.

*Seismic area* means any area where the probability of a horizontal acceleration in rock of more than 0.3 times the acceleration of gravity in 250 years is greater than 10 percent, as designated by the U.S. Geological Survey.